Ribble Valley Borough Council                                                                  

DELEGATED ITEM FILE REPORT - APPROVAL

	Ref: GT

	Application No: 
	3/2010/0522/P

	Development Proposed:
	Application to convert no. 10 back to two separate dwellings (no’s 8 and 10 original) at 10 Windy Street, Chipping, Lancashire, PR3 2GD.



	CONSULTATIONS: Parish/Town Council

	Chipping Parish Council – There have been no formal comments received within the statutory 21-day consultation period.



	CONSULTATIONS: Highway/Water Authority/Other Bodies

	LCC Highways Officer – No objections.



	CONSULTATIONS: Nearby Residents

	No representations have been received.



	RELEVANT POLICIES:

	Policy G1 - Development Control.

Policy G4 – Settlement Strategy.

Policy ENV16 – Development within Conservation Areas.

Policy ENV19 – Listed Buildings.

SPG – “Extensions and Alterations to Dwellings”.

Chipping Conservation Area Appraisal.

Affordable Housing Memorandum of Understanding (AHMU).

PPS3 – Housing (June 2010)



	COMMENTS/ENVIRONMENTAL/AONB/HUMAN RIGHTS ISSUES/RECOMMENDATION:

	10 Windy Street, Chipping is situated within the centre of the village of Chipping, and is considered to be a ‘Building of Townscape Merit’ within the Chipping Conservation Area. The buildings are attached to the Old Vicarage (12-14 Windy Street), which is a Grade II Listed Building. This planning application seeks permission for the conversion of the existing dwelling back into two separate properties. The property in question was previously a pair of end-terrace properties that were converted into one single unit. The proposed conversion involves mainly internal alterations, with the only external alterations proposed being the separation of the rear garden area into two separate gardens. As such there will be no visual impact on the streetscene.

With regards to the principle of the development, more specifically in regards to Policies G1 and G4, the creation of new residential units within Chipping is now acceptable in principle subject to compliance with the Affordable Housing Memorandum of Understanding (AHMU) document, with PPS3 - Housing and with other relevant Local Plan Policies. Given that the proposal seeks permission for one additional dwelling, via the conversion of an existing dwelling/building within the village boundary of Chipping, the development is considered to comply with the above AHMU document. In respect of PPS3, paragraph 71 states ‘Where LPA’s cannot demonstrate an up-to-date five year supply of deliverable sites, they should consider favourably planning applications for housing’. As we do not have an up-to-date five-year supply of housing, the principle of the proposed development is considered acceptable subject to compliance with other Local Plan Policies.

In respect of other relevant Local Plan Policies, given the location of the building within the Chipping Conservation Area and adjoining a Grade II Listed Building, the scheme must also be compliant with Policies ENV16 and ENV19 of the Local Plan. With regards to the visual impact of the proposal, the only visible, external alteration proposed is the separation of the existing rear garden into two separate garden areas, as the conversion only involves blocking up two internal doors. As such, the proposed works will have no detrimental visual impact on the streetscene, or the setting and character of the building itself, the Conservation Area or on the adjacent Listed Building. On this basis, the scheme is considered to entirely in compliance with the above Local Plan Policies.

The LCC Highways Officer has raised no objections to the proposal from a highway safety point of view.

As such, it is for the above reasons that I recommend the application accordingly.



	SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR APPROVAL:

	The proposal has no significant detrimental impact on nearby residential amenity, nor would it have an adverse visual impact on the building or adverse affect upon the setting of the Conservation Area or be to the detriment of highway safety.



	RECOMMENDATION: That conditional planning permission be granted.


DATE INSPECTED: 15/07/2010








